
BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
AGENDA PACKET 

REGULAR TRUSTEES’ MEETING  
MONDAY MAY 09, 2016 

1:00 P.M. 

 

 

Agenda:    Page 2 
 
Administrator:    Pages 3-14 
 

• BZA/Zoning Commission Appointments    Pages 3-8 
 

• Greene County Sheriff’s Office Biweekly Report    Pages 9-14 
 
Human Resources:    Pages 15-22 
 

• Ohio Workers Compensation Third Party Administrator    Pages 15-20 
 

• Biweekly Report    Pages 21-22 
 
Zoning:    Pages 23-36  

• Biweekly Report 
 

Information Technology:    Pages 27-28  
• Biweekly Report 

 
Road:    Pages 29-36 
 

• Purchase request for radiators    Pages 29-30 
 

• Bi-weekly    Pages 31-36 
 

Fire:    Pages 37-50 
 

• Approval of Department Work Rules:  Fire Department Service Retirement  Page 37 
 

• Purchase Request for Physio-Control Maintenance for Lucas Devices    Page 38 
 

• Proclamation Recognizing Service and Accomplishments   Page 38     
 

• Biweekly Activity Report    Pages 39-42 
 
 

1 of 50

1 of 50



 

 
Agenda 

Regular Trustees’ Meeting 
Monday, May 23, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. 

Community Room, Lower Level of Fire Station #61,  2195 Dayton-Xenia Road, Beavercreek, OH  45434 
 

Pledge of Allegiance - Moment of Silence 
• Approve Agenda for the May 23, 2016, Meeting 
• Approve the May 25, 2016, Payroll in the amount of $ 
• Approval of Bills in the amount of $ 
• Approval of Minutes: 

 Regular Meeting held May 9, 2016 
 Special Meeting held May 12, 2016   
 Special Meeting held May 17, 2016   
 Special Meeting held May 19, 2016 

 
Citizens Desiring to Speak (Each Speaker is Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
Old Business:    

• None. 
 
New Business:   

• None. 
 
Administrator: 

• BZA/Zoning Commission Appointments 
• Greene County Sheriff’s Office Biweekly Report 

 
Human Resources: 

• Ohio Workers Compensation Third Party Administrator 
• Biweekly Report 

 
Zoning:  

• Biweekly Report 
 

Information Technology:  
• Biweekly Report 

 
Road: 

• Purchase request for radiators 
• Bi-weekly 
 

Fire: 
• Approval of Department Work Rules:  Fire Department Service Retirement 
• Purchase Request for Physio-Control Maintenance for Lucas Devices 
• Proclamation Recognizing Service and Accomplishments 
• Biweekly Activity Report 

 
Legal Advisor:  
 
Trustees:             
 
Fiscal Officer: 
     
Executive Session: 

• Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22(G)(1) To consider the employment and compensation of a public 
employee. 

• Ohio Revised Code section 121.22(G)(4) preparing for, conducting, or reviewing negotiations or 
bargaining sessions with public employees concerning their compensation or other terms and conditions 
of their employment. 

Adjourn 

2 of 50

2 of 50



3 of 50

3 of 50



4 of 50

4 of 50



5 of 50

5 of 50



6 of 50

6 of 50



7 of 50

7 of 50



8 of 50

8 of 50



05-23-2016
Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type
05/06/2016 17:11:34 2016-00013739 911 Hang Up

Type Totals: 1
05/05/2016 08:05:31 2016-00013581 Alarm - Business/Bank
05/05/2016 08:56:28 2016-00013588 Alarm - Business/Bank
05/05/2016 10:29:26 2016-00013604 Alarm - Business/Bank
05/07/2016 19:05:06 2016-00013840 Alarm - Business/Bank
05/15/2016 06:37:49 2016-00014542 Alarm - Business/Bank
05/18/2016 06:12:23 2016-00014808 Alarm - Business/Bank

Type Totals: 6
05/08/2016 14:58:30 2016-00013903 Alarm - Holdup/Panic

Type Totals: 1
05/05/2016 15:47:35 2016-00013623 Alarm - Residential
05/06/2016 06:25:21 2016-00013676 Alarm - Residential
05/06/2016 15:23:35 2016-00013726 Alarm - Residential
05/07/2016 16:30:31 2016-00013833 Alarm - Residential
05/08/2016 22:06:19 2016-00013921 Alarm - Residential
05/10/2016 10:21:29 2016-00014050 Alarm - Residential
05/15/2016 15:41:41 2016-00014576 Alarm - Residential

Type Totals: 7
05/13/2016 01:08:33 2016-00014298 Animal Complaint

Type Totals: 1
05/05/2016 08:14:20 2016-00013582 Assist
05/05/2016 09:18:59 2016-00013592 Assist
05/05/2016 21:26:47 2016-00013645 Assist

Type Totals: 3
05/09/2016 10:06:39 2016-00013972 Assist Other Agency

Type Totals: 1
05/06/2016 14:38:10 2016-00013717 Breaking & Entering

Type Totals: 1
05/04/2016 22:25:41 2016-00013548 Business Check
05/05/2016 00:35:11 2016-00013554 Business Check
05/05/2016 00:44:04 2016-00013556 Business Check
05/05/2016 01:41:17 2016-00013561 Business Check

9 of 50

9 of 50



05-23-2016
Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type
05/06/2016 03:10:03 2016-00013670 Business Check
05/06/2016 03:13:56 2016-00013673 Business Check
05/06/2016 20:08:49 2016-00013749 Business Check
05/06/2016 21:11:51 2016-00013757 Business Check
05/06/2016 21:29:17 2016-00013759 Business Check
05/07/2016 01:59:09 2016-00013776 Business Check
05/07/2016 09:03:46 2016-00013794 Business Check
05/07/2016 16:19:53 2016-00013832 Business Check
05/11/2016 10:51:13 2016-00014133 Business Check
05/11/2016 13:39:30 2016-00014152 Business Check
05/11/2016 21:39:31 2016-00014187 Business Check
05/13/2016 02:34:36 2016-00014314 Business Check
05/13/2016 07:42:13 2016-00014327 Business Check
05/14/2016 02:30:29 2016-00014427 Business Check
05/16/2016 23:41:41 2016-00014677 Business Check

Type Totals: 19
05/14/2016 08:48:37 2016-00014450 Civil Other
05/16/2016 13:45:47 2016-00014641 Civil Other

Type Totals: 2
05/10/2016 22:55:27 2016-00014095 Crash - Assist Only
05/12/2016 20:46:19 2016-00014280 Crash - Assist Only
05/15/2016 14:02:40 2016-00014571 Crash - Assist Only
05/16/2016 22:27:16 2016-00014674 Crash - Assist Only

Type Totals: 4
05/13/2016 14:48:24 2016-00014370 Crash - Hit Skip

Type Totals: 1
05/10/2016 16:00:44 2016-00014081 Crash - Personal  Injury

Type Totals: 1
05/05/2016 21:13:57 2016-00013643 Crash - Property Damage
05/08/2016 11:27:29 2016-00013894 Crash - Property Damage
05/17/2016 18:12:20 2016-00014767 Crash - Property Damage

Type Totals: 3
05/06/2016 10:30:13 2016-00013698 Detail - Other

10 of 50

10 of 50



05-23-2016
Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type
05/07/2016 08:22:11 2016-00013789 Detail - Other
05/08/2016 08:15:01 2016-00013887 Detail - Other
05/14/2016 07:45:22 2016-00014436 Detail - Other
05/17/2016 07:44:58 2016-00014710 Detail - Other

Type Totals: 5
05/04/2016 07:29:51 2016-00013480 Detail - School
05/04/2016 14:08:08 2016-00013530 Detail - School
05/05/2016 09:40:54 2016-00013595 Detail - School
05/09/2016 13:52:12 2016-00013994 Detail - School
05/10/2016 07:39:40 2016-00014034 Detail - School
05/12/2016 08:04:41 2016-00014230 Detail - School
05/16/2016 07:27:26 2016-00014604 Detail - School

Type Totals: 7
05/05/2016 17:44:49 2016-00013627 Disabled Vehicle
05/06/2016 16:48:31 2016-00013737 Disabled Vehicle
05/09/2016 18:10:53 2016-00014012 Disabled Vehicle
05/11/2016 19:50:35 2016-00014177 Disabled Vehicle

Type Totals: 4
05/08/2016 10:14:26 2016-00013891 Domestic Violence

Type Totals: 1
05/06/2016 03:13:36 2016-00013672 Extra Patrol
05/07/2016 13:04:13 2016-00013810 Extra Patrol
05/07/2016 13:49:10 2016-00013816 Extra Patrol
05/07/2016 14:00:52 2016-00013818 Extra Patrol
05/07/2016 21:07:44 2016-00013860 Extra Patrol
05/11/2016 08:47:14 2016-00014119 Extra Patrol
05/11/2016 12:48:06 2016-00014142 Extra Patrol
05/11/2016 13:11:12 2016-00014147 Extra Patrol
05/11/2016 13:56:36 2016-00014155 Extra Patrol
05/12/2016 10:02:06 2016-00014246 Extra Patrol
05/13/2016 01:02:40 2016-00014296 Extra Patrol
05/13/2016 20:22:39 2016-00014388 Extra Patrol
05/16/2016 09:25:49 2016-00014614 Extra Patrol

11 of 50

11 of 50



05-23-2016
Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type
05/17/2016 13:14:22 2016-00014746 Extra Patrol
05/17/2016 14:05:13 2016-00014753 Extra Patrol
05/17/2016 14:16:54 2016-00014755 Extra Patrol
05/17/2016 15:23:50 2016-00014757 Extra Patrol

Type Totals: 17
05/16/2016 14:34:31 2016-00014646 Fight

Type Totals: 1
05/04/2016 08:21:22 2016-00013488 Follow Up
05/05/2016 09:56:54 2016-00013598 Follow Up
05/08/2016 11:18:23 2016-00013893 Follow Up
05/11/2016 11:08:36 2016-00014136 Follow Up
05/12/2016 15:01:19 2016-00014266 Follow Up

Type Totals: 5
05/10/2016 18:33:13 2016-00014085 Harrassment

Type Totals: 1
05/07/2016 13:13:17 2016-00013811 House Check
05/17/2016 15:35:04 2016-00014758 House Check

Type Totals: 2
05/17/2016 23:30:41 2016-00014778 Intoxicated Subject

Type Totals: 1
05/06/2016 21:44:23 2016-00013762 Lockout Assistance

Type Totals: 1
05/12/2016 21:00:53 2016-00014281 Peace Officer

Type Totals: 1
05/06/2016 20:41:10 2016-00013753 Radar/Lidar Post
05/13/2016 10:23:01 2016-00014341 Radar/Lidar Post

Type Totals: 2
05/05/2016 08:02:40 2016-00013585 Request Officer
05/10/2016 09:02:08 2016-00014045 Request Officer
05/16/2016 21:58:01 2016-00014673 Request Officer

Type Totals: 3
05/14/2016 21:39:41 2016-00014526 Street / Road Obstruction

Type Totals: 1

12 of 50

12 of 50



05-23-2016
Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type
05/13/2016 07:06:40 2016-00014322 Suspicious Person

Type Totals: 1
05/05/2016 14:47:49 2016-00013620 Suspicious Vehicle
05/07/2016 04:58:04 2016-00013786 Suspicious Vehicle
05/11/2016 23:04:06 2016-00014192 Suspicious Vehicle
05/14/2016 13:37:48 2016-00014496 Suspicious Vehicle
05/16/2016 06:51:17 2016-00014602 Suspicious Vehicle

Type Totals: 5
05/06/2016 13:34:29 2016-00013711 Theft
05/06/2016 16:35:47 2016-00013733 Theft
05/09/2016 17:23:07 2016-00014013 Theft
05/11/2016 14:25:01 2016-00014158 Theft
05/12/2016 10:11:10 2016-00014253 Theft
05/17/2016 15:36:28 2016-00014760 Theft

Type Totals: 6
05/05/2016 16:36:34 2016-00013624 Traffic Complaint
05/08/2016 04:55:36 2016-00013885 Traffic Complaint
05/17/2016 19:44:42 2016-00014770 Traffic Complaint

Type Totals: 3
05/04/2016 07:37:10 2016-00013482 Traffic Stop
05/04/2016 14:10:35 2016-00013531 Traffic Stop
05/05/2016 01:51:44 2016-00013562 Traffic Stop
05/05/2016 23:17:34 2016-00013653 Traffic Stop
05/06/2016 08:50:00 2016-00013684 Traffic Stop
05/07/2016 19:39:51 2016-00013845 Traffic Stop
05/07/2016 20:56:11 2016-00013855 Traffic Stop
05/09/2016 02:53:29 2016-00013940 Traffic Stop
05/09/2016 15:06:54 2016-00014001 Traffic Stop
05/10/2016 06:02:54 2016-00014028 Traffic Stop
05/10/2016 07:46:16 2016-00014036 Traffic Stop
05/10/2016 10:40:37 2016-00014054 Traffic Stop
05/10/2016 10:45:59 2016-00014055 Traffic Stop
05/10/2016 10:50:43 2016-00014057 Traffic Stop

13 of 50

13 of 50



05-23-2016
Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type
05/10/2016 13:09:06 2016-00014067 Traffic Stop
05/10/2016 14:01:41 2016-00014071 Traffic Stop
05/12/2016 19:45:35 2016-00014276 Traffic Stop
05/13/2016 02:41:38 2016-00014315 Traffic Stop
05/13/2016 07:29:55 2016-00014324 Traffic Stop
05/13/2016 08:48:23 2016-00014332 Traffic Stop
05/13/2016 09:47:28 2016-00014338 Traffic Stop
05/13/2016 10:24:38 2016-00014342 Traffic Stop
05/13/2016 10:37:15 2016-00014346 Traffic Stop
05/13/2016 12:14:37 2016-00014356 Traffic Stop

Type Totals: 24
05/12/2016 07:58:46 2016-00014228 Vehicle Maintenance

Type Totals: 1
05/09/2016 12:49:23 2016-00013989 Warrant
05/09/2016 15:52:41 2016-00014006 Warrant
05/09/2016 16:52:16 2016-00014009 Warrant
05/09/2016 17:33:35 2016-00014010 Warrant

Type Totals: 4
05/07/2016 10:57:30 2016-00013801 Weapons / Shots Fired
05/14/2016 19:32:59 2016-00014523 Weapons / Shots Fired

Type Totals: 2
05/10/2016 14:57:48 2016-00014076 Welfare Check
05/13/2016 17:23:03 2016-00014381 Welfare Check

Type Totals: 2

14 of 50

14 of 50



15 of 50

15 of 50



16 of 50

16 of 50



17 of 50

17 of 50



18 of 50

18 of 50



19 of 50

19 of 50



  
“I make a motion to approve Compmanagement as the Third 
Party Administrator for the Township for the group rating 
enrollment period of January 1, 2017 through December 31, 
2017 in the amount of $3,370.  In the event that this group rating 
program does not move forward, I then approve 
CareWorksComp as the Third Party Administrator for the same 
time period in the amount of $17,389; and authorize the 
Township Administrator to sign for the Board.”  
  

20 of 50

20 of 50



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    
Ph: (937) 426-1213        Fax: (937) 306-5150 
 

 1 

BI-WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
May 23, 2016 

 
 

 
 
 
JOB TASKS: 
 
1. 0 Workers’ Compensation claims for 2016 

7 claims filed in 2015 
 
2. Prepare bi-weekly report  

 
3. Review bills 

 
4. Work on return to work  

 
5.  Review personnel and medical files from the Finance Office 

 
6. Review job descriptions and advertisements from FO; review case law pertaining to pre-

employment drug testing; respond to FO on same 
 

7. Post jobs for FO 
 

8. Work with Broker on renewal 
 

9. Work on medical billing issue 
 

10. Assist FO with new hire 
 

11. Assist FO with pending retirement 
 

12. Assist FO with payroll deductions 
 

13. Assist FO with hiring 
 

14. Prepare  
 

15. Work on multiple grievances 
 

16. Work on multiple return to work issues 
 

21 of 50

21 of 50



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    
Ph: (937) 426-1213        Fax: (937) 306-5150 
 

 2 

17. Work on FMLA issue 
 

18. Draft questions for FO interviews  
 

19. Prepare letter to BC on leave  
 

20. Work on exposure 
 

21. Schedule Medwork appointments 
 

22.  Work on youthworks program for FD 
 

23.  Schedule policy training and evaluations 
 

24. Review resumes 
 

25. Work on issues pertaining to fact finding with Xenia Township 
 

26. Update job posts with rate change 
 

27. Work with Intern 
 
 

 
MEETINGS AND OTHER ACTIVITIES: 
 
Meet with the TA on multiple issues 
Meet with Chief VandenBos on multiple issues 
Meet with Alan Stock on proposal 
Meet with FO on hiring 
Meet with employees on RTW status 
Meet with Melissa Gruys 
Attend Board meeting 
Attend Labor Management meeting 
Attend Staff meeting 
 
 
 
 

22 of 50

22 of 50



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

1 

 

BI-WEEKLY REPORT 

FOR THE TRUSTEES MEETING OF MONDAY, MAY 23, 2016 

ACTIVITY FROM THU, MAY 05, 2016 THROUGH WED, MAY 18, 2016 

PERMITS:  Five permits for single-family dwellings were issued in this period. Other permits 

issued were for six tents (three permits), one accessory shed, and one cell tower co-location. 

Also, four Parks Permits were issued, and one Variance application was received. Last year, 

we did not issue the 44th house permit until June 16. This year to date we have a 22% 

increase over 2015 in single-family dwelling permits (44 vs. 36), and a 33% increase in total 

Zoning actions (121 vs. 91), not counting Parks Permits.   

The following chart compares numbers of Zoning Permits issued for the last six years. 

Numbers through 2015 are totals for each year. 2016 numbers are year-to-date, through May 

18. The revenue line is the amount generated by Zoning Department fees. 

 

PENDING: Survey work is under way for the re-zoning of the Zinck property by Ohio Univ. 

one Variance application and one Conditional Use application are expected soon. 

Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Single family dwellings 62 37 47 26 61 96 44

Driveways 32 22 32 27 57 94 42

Additions 4 9 1 3 10 5 4

Fences 16 19 14 20 22 13 3

Pools (including fence) 2 4 8 11 5 7 1

Signs 6 7 7 4 9 7 3

Rights of Way 3 0 7 1 2 3 3

Accessory Decks & Covered Patio 14 16 26 15 8 14 4

Accessory Structures 13 13 14 14 13 15 6

Commercial Structures 1 0 7 2 0 0

Commercial Addition 2 0 2 1 1 2

Commercial Accessory Structures  1 0 1 2 5 2

Temporary Tents  Permits 13 13 13 13 14 12 6

Exemption Certificate 0 1 2 3 2 6

Use Compliance Certificates 1 2 1 1 1 3

Cell Tower Co-location 0 0 0 0 2 0 1

Temporary Use Permits (Real Estate Sales)    0 0 0 0 2 0

Political Signs 1 5 2 19 4 7 6

Parks Permits 0 0 0 0 0 18 37

Total 171 148 184 162 218 304 160

Revenue $14,274.80 $24,094.65 $15,843.80 $11,735.00 $15,910.00 $29,380.00 16,535.00$ 

23 of 50

23 of 50



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

2 

 

REVENUE PROJECTIONS 

The following chart shows estimated additional Township revenue generated by new home 

construction, by Fund. For 2010 through 2015 the amounts are based on final year-end 

Zoning Permit totals. The numbers for this year are year-to-date based on permits issued 

through 05-18-16, using 2014 Tax Levy rates and an estimated average NEW HOME 

property value of $350,000. Note: Receipt of revenues will follow two years after they are 

generated, e.g. revenue generated in 2016 will be disbursed to the Township in 2018. Also 

Note: We are now using a higher average new home property value, based on data 

received from Greene County Dept. of Building Regulation and confirmed by the 

Commissioners’ office.  

 

The following graph is simply an illustration of the revenue data in the chart above. 

 

Fund 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

General 3,736.25                    2,327.50           2,878.75               1,592.50          3,675.00      5,880.00      2,695.00    

Road 23,790.06                  14,820.04         18,330.05             10,140.03       23,400.06    37,440.10    17,160.05 

Fire 35,818.75                  22,313.32         27,598.05             15,267.01       35,231.56    56,370.49    25,836.47 

Police 6,622.76                    4,125.65           5,102.78               2,822.81          6,514.19      10,422.70    4,777.07    

Total 69,967.82                  43,586.51         53,909.63             29,822.35       68,820.81    110,113.29 50,468.59 

24 of 50

24 of 50



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

3 

 

MEETINGS/OTHER ACTIVITIES: 

1. Responded to follow-up inquiries re: Ohio University/Russ Research Center strategic 

planning effort, including conversations with OU principal planning consultant and 

Director of GC Public Library.  

2. Consulted with TA, Zoning staff and HR re: department re-organization and job 

descriptions. 

3. Continued formal and informal training of Zoning Assistant for assumption of new 

duties (Novak recommendation). 

4. Conferred with multiple parties re: development ideas for 5-acre parcel on Beaver 

Valley Rd. 

5. Issued six Zoning permits. 

6. Attended meeting with Fairbrook Elem. Sch. Safe Routes to School comm. 05-05-16 

7. Attended Trustees regular meeting 05-09-16. 

8. With L. Brown, met with owner of Kil-Kare Speedway re: development plans and 

zoning options 05-10-16. 

9. With L. Brown, met with potential buyers re: development plans for Beaver Valley Rd. 

(cell tower) parcel 05-10-16. 

10. Attended Safe Routes to School planning committee meeting 05-12-16. 

11. Met with resident re: proposed lot split 05-12-16. 

12. With TA & Trustee Roberts, met on site with owners of Bexley Hills Lots 169 & 170 re: 

Emergency Access drive 05-12-16. 

13. Met with resident re: various investment/development ideas 05-17-16. 

14. Conferred with OU lead planner re: progress on Russ property plans 05-17-16. 

15. Conferred with Director of the GC Public Library System re: OU/Russ plans 05-17-16. 

16. Conferred with seller’s agent re: sale of Beaver Valley Rd. property 05-17&18-16. 

17. Attended TA staff mtg. 05-18-16. 

18. Attended BZA hearings 05-18-16. One Variance approved, Home Occupation Permit 

denied. 

Following are some highlights of additional Zoning tasks performed by Laurie Brown, 
Zoning Assistant (tasks outside her job description) 

 Spent significant time preparing verbatim Trustee Meeting Minutes. 
 Assisted 2 families with cemetery plot arrangements. 
 Assisted interim Fiscal Office staff with records, data retrieval & phone 

coverage. 
 Issued 3 Zoning permits. 

 Issued 4 Parks Permits. 

 Responded to multiple zoning inquiries, advised applicant for Home Occupation 

Permit. 

 

25 of 50

25 of 50



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

4 

 

 Helped to coordinate individual School meetings schedule for Safe Routes to School 

Committee. 

 Wrote and arranged for publication of Public Hearing Notice.  

 Assisted with preparation of Zoning Department bi-weekly report. 

 Consulted with ZA, TA, HR Manager & IT Manager re: Zoning Dept. reorganization. 

 With E. Amrhein, met with owner of Kil-Kare Speedway re: development plans and 

zoning options 05-10-16. 

 With E. Amrhein, met with potential buyers re: development options for Beaver Valley 

Rd. (cell tower) parcel 05-10-16. 

 Attended BZA meeting/hearings 05-18-16. 

BUILD-OUT DATA 
The following chart shows build-out percentages and remaining shovel-ready home sites, by 

subdivision. This chart is a work-in-progress – we will continually update it according to 

available data, and will perform field checks as time allows.  

 

PUD # Homes Approved  Completed % CompletedShovel Ready Sites

Spring Meadows 109 84 71% 25

Spring Ridge 111 94 77% 17

The Conservancy 62 59 95% 3

Rolling Meadows 24 23 96% 1

Dorset Downs 37 32 86% 5

Nathaniel's Grove 475 0 0% 0

Wolf Ridge 14 13 93% 1

Stonehill Village

Spindletop 156 142 91% 14

Liberty Hill 162 138 85% 24

Claiborne Greens 166 46 28% 22

The Narrows 26 25 96% 1

River West 

Scarborough 75 13 17% 25

Bexley Hills 77 51 66% 16

River Reserve 244 0 0% 0

Stone Farm Est. 26 25 96% 1

Country Club of the North 311 241 77% 70

Hunters' Pointe 344 344 100% 0

Hickory Hollow Est. 44 44 100% 0

Wood Ridge Est. 44 6 14% 38

Arlington/The Colony 154 141 92% 13

Woodland Hills Estates 45 44 98% 1

Beaver Hills Estates 53 53 100% 0

Windemere 77 77 100% 0

Totals 2836 1695 60% 277

26 of 50

26 of 50



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 306.5049        Fax: (937) 426-8780 
 

Bi-Weekly Report for 

May 23, 2016  

Regular Board of Trustees’ Meeting 

(Report period 09 – 18 May 16) 

 

Trustees, 

 

The following is a brief synopsis of the past two weeks in the IT department.  I will be 

present to answer any questions or concerns you may have.   

 

IT Projects/Management: 

 Upgrade Citrix environment (in-work) 

o Still working with lead Engineers...Submitted more log files to them 

 They are writing script to improve performance 

 Research and deploy video conferencing between all Fire Stations (on hold for 

Citrix Migration) 

 Equipment Inventory, Surplus (Gov Deals)  and Repurpose IT equipment (hold) 

 Hot/Warm site planning, station 64(hold) 

Network Administration: 

 Patched /Rebooted all servers physical/virtual (in-progress) 

 Social Media—Website,  Facebook, Twitter, YouTube 

o Website 

 Updated site to reflected new department structure 

 Added new TWP admin pic 

 Updated Link to Parks website 

o YouTube 

 Posted 9 May Regular Meeting 

o Facebook/Twitter—Links posted 

 Active Directory (User/Group account management) 

o Created Accounts for Susan McCarthy and Pauline Humbert 

o Unlocked accounts as requested 

o Added/Deleted users To/From Security Groups.  

 Cemetery Server 

o Added/Deleted Accounts 

o Reset Passwords 

o Awaiting Training from vendor  

 Updated BC Pool VMs 

 Verified Backups are current and running. 

27 of 50

27 of 50



 2 

 Configured and setup new users workstations 

 Created new server for TWP/BTFD photo/video storage 

o Running out of space on Public drive 

 Reviewed Spam/Web filters 

o Deleted/Whitelisted domains as appropriate  

Meetings: 

 Department Heads meeting 

Training: 

 None this period 

Miscellaneous / Outages: 

 Working on Public Records Requests 

 Burned CDs for Zoning Dept. 

Awareness Items: 

 None this period 

Purchases: 

 Dual Layer DVDs / Sleeves 

 Barracuda Instant Replacement  

 Layer 3 switch (still on backorder) 

 

I look forward to meeting with you at the 23 May meeting and answering any 

questions/concerns you may have on the preceding information. In the meantime, if you 

have any questions you can contact me via email or my cell @ 937.212.1379 

 

 

Jeff Terry | Information Technology 

Beavercreek Township 

937.306.5049 

 

28 of 50

28 of 50



29 of 50

29 of 50



30 of 50

30 of 50



31 of 50

31 of 50



32 of 50

32 of 50



33 of 50

33 of 50



34 of 50

34 of 50



35 of 50

35 of 50



36 of 50

36 of 50



1 / 14 

 To: Alex Zaharieff, Township Administrator 

 From: David VandenBos, Fire Chief 

 Date: 2016-05-19 

 Re: Fire Department Agenda Items for 2016-05-23 Biweekly Trustees’ Meeting 

1) Approval of Department Work Rules:  Fire Department Service Retirement 

2) Purchase Request for Physio-Control Maintenance for Lucas Devices 

3) Proclamation Recognizing Service and Accomplishments 

4) Biweekly Activity Report 
 

1) Approval of Department Work Rules:  Fire Department Service Retirement 

1.1) The fire department is requesting the Township Administrator and Board review and 

approve the attached draft policy [Attachment 01.00], in accordance with Township Policy 

I.1.2.1.  The policy establishes guidelines for the evaluation and approval of an employee’s of 

accrued leave as terminal leave. 

1.2) I make a motion to approve the following: 

Fire Department work rule SOG 5112.003, Service Retirement. 

2) Purchase Request for Physio-Control Maintenance for Lucas Devices 

2.1) The fire department is requesting approval of a four-year service agreement with Physio-

Control to purchase maintenance for four Lucas 2 Chest Compression devices at a total cost of 

$21,080 (following their 1-year factory warranty). 

2.2) This request fills a known future need. 

2.3) This service agreement will provide maintenance for the Lucas devices according to 

manufacturer specifications. 

2.4) Cost Center/Program Area:  EMS Operations (5720) 

Object Code: Contracted Services (360) 

proposed 2017 budget line item. 

2.5) This technical service agreement will protect the Township’s investment and keep the Lucas 

devices operational following the one-year factory warranty.  Executing the agreement now will 

lock in pricing for the next four years.  The service agreement will be billed in four annual 

installments, beginning in 2017, at a cost of $5,270 per year.  The agreement can be cancelled 

by the Township without penalty, at any time. 

 This agreement covers all four devices purchase by the Township in March 2016, following 

their one-year factory warranty.  This is a comprehensive service agreement. Per the terms and 

conditions, “Comprehensive Service” or “Repair & Inspect Service” specifically includes repairs, 

battery replacement service, parts and labor necessary to restore Covered Equipment to original 

specifications, and inspections to verify proper device calibration, mechanical operations and 

output measurements, electrical safety check, and Updates.  The service program provides a 

return a phone call within 2-hours and emergency repairs within 24 hours. 

37 of 50

37 of 50



2 / 14 

 The fire department originally projected these costs at $5,600 annually in the purchase’s 

supporting documentation for the 2016-03-14 Trustees’ meeting, ¶3.8.3. 

2.6) Quotations: 

2.6.1) [Attachment 02.60] 

2.6.2) Physio-Control is the manufacturer and only authorized service provider for the Lucas 

devices owned by the Township. 

2.6.3) n/a 

2.7) Specifications 

2.7.1) n/a 

2.7.2) Approved by Township Legal Counsel 

2.8) Other Cost Considerations 

2.8.1) The equipment serviced by this contract has a projected 10-year life cycle, through 

FY2026.  This contract maintains existing equipment, in accordance with manufacturer’s 

specifications through 2021. 

2.8.2) Contracted service: This service is contracted due to manufacturer’s requirements and 

limitations. 

2.8.3) Recurring Cost:  This purchase is part of the projected total cost of ownership of the 

devices. 

2.8.4) Estimated Depreciated (Units of Activity) Cost: n/a 

2.9) Disposal:  n/a 

2.10) I make a motion to approve the following: 

Purchase Request 08080 to Physio-Control for a 4-year service agreement for Lucas Devices 

in the amount of $21,080.00 

and to authorize the Township Administrator to sign for the Board. 

3) Proclamation Recognizing Service and Accomplishments 

3.1) The fire department requests the Board of Township Trustees adopt a proclamation in 

honor of the service and contributions of Lt. David Mallonee [Attachment 03.00]. 

38 of 50

38 of 50



3 / 14 

4) Biweekly Activity Report 

4.1) Senior Staff Meeting:  Senior staff met to discuss items of interest and concern, including:  

LTE system evaluation, update on fire engine modifications and repair, station cable boxes, Blue 

Card training, Incident Management Manual updates, CAD fire quadrant updates, changes to 

normal business operations as a result of Fiscal Office changes. 

4.2) UPCOMING EVENT  Old Timers Breakfast:  The fifth annual Old Timers Breakfast will be held 

Saturday, May 21 from 08:00 to 11:00.  Sponsored by the Honors Committee, this event 

recognizes the contributions of former volunteers and employees and provides an opportunity 

for current members to learn about the department’s history by those who created it. 

4.3) UPCOMING EVENT  Retirement Ceremony:  The fire department will celebrate Lt. 

Mallonee’s career Wednesday June 1, 2016 starting at Station 64 for final inspection and flag 

ceremony and continuing at Station 61 at 11:30 for retirement ceremony and reception. 

4.4) Labor-Management:  Township and Labor management met to discuss items of mutual 

interest and concern, including:  meal exclusion for overtime, mediated grievances, respiratory 

protection policy, staffing, and cable boxes. 

4.5) Fiscal Office Support:  Fire Department staff provided material support to the fiscal office, in 

addition to duties performed in the normal course of business, including:  discovered error in 

employee reimbursement check and returned for correction, spent approximately 7 hours 

correcting Time Warner Cable order errors made by the previous accounts payable clerk, spent 

approximately 3 hours resolving errors and installing cable boxes for Township staff, and 

assisted the fiscal office with by managing OSL batches. 

 Also, Paycor access to custom reporting still has not been restored to DC Mercs or FC 

VandenBos, preventing overtime and associated payroll reports from being updated. 

4.6) Blue Card Training:  Approximately half of the firefighters completed their 50-hours of 

online training and began 24-hours of practical training in emergency incident management. 

4.7) Public Outreach:  The fire department had non-incident contact with the community at the 

following events: 

Station 63 5K Run, medic standby 

Station 64 Cub Scouts, station tour 

Station 63 5K Run, medic standby 

Station 64 5k Run, medic standby 

Station 61 Youth Baseball, engine static display 

Station 61 CPR 

Station 64 EMS Open House 

 

39 of 50

39 of 50



4 / 14 

4.8) Biweekly Incident Activity 

 

Call for Service Type 10-Year over Year History             YTD | Projected

3: Medical l p 148 3,914  1,607  +12%

7: False Alarm l q 16 396     129     -17%

3: Crash  w 14 346     134     +4%

6: Good Intent l p 3 278     113     +18%

5: Service l q 5 148     45        -15%

4: Hazard l q 6 132     53        +12%

1: Fire l q 4 81        27        -19%

2: Explosion l w 0 10        3          +1%

8: Severe Weather l w 0 1          -      -100%

9: Special l p 1 23        14        +64%

Total q 197 5,329 2,125 +9%

Biweekly History |  Trend | Current

Biweekly Calls for Service Activity Report: Incorporated and Unincorporated

#REF!

70%

7%

7%

6%

5%

3%

3%

0%

0%

0%

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

C I T YC I T Y

B A T HB A T H

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

X E N I AX E N I A

C I T YC I T Y

X E N I AX E N I A

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

M I A M IM I A M I

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

F A I R B O R NF A I R B O R N

C I T YC I T Y

S P R I N GS P R I N G

VA L L E YVA L L E Y

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

S U G A R C R E E KS U G A R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

C I T YC I T Y

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

D A Y T O ND A Y T O N

K E T T E R I N GK E T T E R I N G

R I V E R S I D ER I V E R S I D E

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

W A S H I N G T O NW A S H I N G T O N

T W PT W P

W P A F BW P A F B

61

62

63

64

.FIRE DEPARTMENT
BIWEEKLY
CALLS FOR SERVICE

G Fire Stations

Incorporated

EMS (124)

Crash (10)

Service (26)

Fire (2)

Unincorporated

EMS (23)

Crash (4)

Service (5)

Fire (2)

0 2 4 6 81
Miles

40 of 50

40 of 50



5 / 14 

 

 

There have been 2,125 incidents this year, which is -3% from this time last year

The past two weeks were 12% slower than average, with 2 hours slower than 99%, and 0 hours busier than 99% of the year.

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2,125 incidents YTD

-15%

+15%

-3% from prior year

99%: 06 
95%: 09 

50%: 15 

5%: 22 
1%: 26 

W T F S S M T W T F S S M T
0

10

20

30

Training Type Biweekly History |  Trend | Current

EMS p 19 2,010     1,307  

Firefighting q 31 926        96        

Driver/Operator p 35 899        103     

Rescue p 0 1,692     94        

Officers p 9 1,228     35        

NIMS q 386 2,028     45        

Daily Dril ls p 15 621        17        

Haz-Mat p 7 416        3          

Fire Prevention q 2 105        -      

Instructors q 8 38          12        

Dispatch p 0 32          1,712  

Total p 511 9,994    3,424 

Biweekly Training Activity Report

#REF!

10-Year over Year History             YTD

3.7%

6.1%

6.8%

0.0%

1.7%

75.6%

3.0%

1.4%

0.3%

1.6%

0.0%

100.0%

0 250 500 750 1,000

41 of 50

41 of 50



6 / 14 

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

C I T YC I T Y

B A T HB A T H

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

X E N I AX E N I A

C I T YC I T Y

X E N I AX E N I A

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

M I A M IM I A M I

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

F A I R B O R NF A I R B O R N

C I T YC I T Y

S P R I N GS P R I N G

VA L L E YVA L L E Y

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

S U G A R C R E E KS U G A R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

C I T YC I T Y

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

D A Y T O ND A Y T O N

K E T T E R I N GK E T T E R I N G

R I V E R S I D ER I V E R S I D E

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

W A S H I N G T O NW A S H I N G T O N

T W PT W P

W P A F BW P A F B

61

62

63

64

.FIRE DEPARTMENT
BIWEEKLY
CALLS FOR SERVICE

G Fire Stations

Narcan Administration

Past 2 Weeks (1)

Past Year (66)

0 2 4 6 81
Miles

42 of 50

42 of 50



7 / 14 

ATTACHMENT 01.00 

 SOG NUMBER: 5112_003 

 SUBJECT: Fire Department Service Retirement 

 VERSION: 0.9 

 EFFECTIVE DATE: 2016-05-26 

Section 1.0: Purpose and Scope 

Section 1.1: Purpose 

This Standard Operating Guideline (SOG) establishes the criteria for consideration of use of terminal 

leave for service retirements. 

Section 1.2: Scope 

This SOG applies to all fire department employees, at their request, at the time of their service 

retirement.  This policy will not add to, or remove from, any benefit an employee is entitled to through a 

Collective Bargaining Agreement, employment resolution, individual employment contract, or Township 

Personnel Policy. 

Section 1.3: Organizational Origin 

Fire Administration, Senior Staff 

Section 2.0: Definitions 

BTFD:  standard abbreviation for Beavercreek Township Fire Department. 

SOG:  standard abbreviation for Standard Operating Guideline.  Formerly called General Orders, 

Standard Operating Procedures, and Records & Reports, these policies, procedures and forms are the 

general governing documents for the fire department’s operations and administration. 

Will:  absolute requirement for the policy, with no discretion or deviation permitted. 

May:  permissive requirement for the policy, with discretion or deviation permitted within the 

parameters defined by the SOG. 

Contract:  the labor-management agreement currently in effect between the Township and IAFF Local 

2857. 

Handbook:  the Township’s Personnel Policy Manual currently in effect. 

Service Retirement:  A separation from service that meets the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund’s 

requirements for a “Normal Service Retirement”, “Age/Service Commuted Retirement”, or “Deferred 

Retirement Option Plan”. 

Terminal Leave:  An employee’s use of accumulated leave at the end of their service career, in lieu of, 

and at the same rate as, cash payouts allowed through the collective bargaining agreement, 

employment resolution, individual employment contract, or Township Personnel Policy. 

Section 3.0: Policy 

The Board will consider an employee’s request to use their accumulated leave as terminal leave.  The 

Board will evaluate the following criteria, and at their sole discretion may grant the use of terminal 

leave.  Final approval of terminal leave is dependent upon receipt of a letter of retirement. 

Section 3.2: Evaluation CriteriaPrior to granting the use of terminal leave, the Board of Township 

Trustees will consider the following: 

3.2.1. Length of Career 

43 of 50

43 of 50



8 / 14 

The Board will consider the employee’s length of service to the Beavercreek Community, with 

preference given to more years of service. 

3.2.2. Roles in Career 

The Board will consider the employee’s roles within the organization, including leadership or extra 

responsibilities, with preference given to demonstration of achievement above basic job responsibilities. 

Special preference will be given to employees who have served the fire department as volunteer 

firefighters and emergency medical technicians/paramedics. 

3.2.3. Service Record 

The Board will consider the employee’s service record, including commendations and discipline, with 

preference given to employees with exemplary records. 

3.2.4. Operational Impact of Terminal Leave 

The Board will consider the impact the employee’s use of terminal leave will have on the normal, daily 

operations of the fire department, including staffing and direct replacement of the employee’s special 

skills and abilities. 

3.2.5. Financial Impact of Terminal Leave 

The Board will consider the financial impact of the employee’s use of terminal leave, including the need 

for hiring, promotion, officer-in-charge or other premium pay, and overtime to cover the absence 

caused by terminal leave. 

Section 3.3: Leave Scheduling 

Approved terminal leave will not result in the loss of scheduled leave for any other employee.   Once 

approved, terminal leave will be considered in the calculation of daily staffing for the evaluation of 

following leave requests. 

Exception:  If the employee on terminal leave is permanently replaced, their absence will no longer be 

considered when evaluating leave requests. 

Section 4.0: Procedures 

Section 4.1: Employee Request 

An employee, at the time of their service retirement, may request the use of terminal leave.  The Board 

will not consider the use of terminal leave, except at the specific request of an  

Section 4.2: Trustee Determination 

The Board of Township Trustees reserve the final statutory authority and management right to grant or 

deny terminal leave to any requesting employee, based upon their evaluation of criteria as described in 

§3.2.  Each requesting employee will be given the same due consideration. 

Section 4.3: Employee Notification 

The Board of Township Trustees will make their determination at a regular open meeting, or properly 

announced special meeting.  The determination will be formalized in resolution passed by a majority of 

the Board. 

Section 5.0: Forms 

Section 6.0: References 

Section 6.1: Internal References 

Section 6.2: External References 

44 of 50

44 of 50



9 / 14 

1) Township Handbook, current version 

2) Contract, current version 

3) ORC §505.38(A), §505.05 

Section 7.0: History 

Section 7.1: Created:  2016-05-19 

Section 7.2: Modifications: n/a 

Section 7.3: Termination: n/a

45 of 50

45 of 50



10 / 14 

ATTACHMENT 02.60 

 

 

46 of 50

46 of 50



11 / 14 

 

47 of 50

47 of 50



12 / 14 

48 of 50

48 of 50



13 / 14 

 

49 of 50

49 of 50



14 / 14 

ATTACHMENT 03.00 

IN HONOR OF SERVICE AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF 

LIEUTENANT DAVID MALLONEE ON HIS RETIREMENT FROM 

THE BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

June 1, 2016 

RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

WHEREAS,  Lieutenant David M. Mallonee began volunteering with the Beavercreek Township Fire 

Department at Station 4 on December 1, 1979 to serve the citizens of Beavercreek Township and the 

City of Beavercreek, and 

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Mallonee completed the Emergency Victim Care Class in 1980 and was hired 

shortly after as a part-time Beavercreek Township Firefighter, and 

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Mallonee was hired as a career firefighter in November 16, 1987 with the 

Beavercreek Township Fire Department, and 

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Mallonee has worked in all four fire stations, both old and new, and served for 

seven different fire chiefs, and  

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Mallonee was promoted to Lieutenant in March 1995, by Fire Chief Paul 

Hemmeter, and 

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Mallonee was instrumental in the development of the scene accountability 

system used by the fire department and assisted in writing the original standard operating procedure, 

and assisted with driver’s training, fire training, has served as a member of the Safety Committee and a 

member of the Honor Guard for the Pallbearer Team, and 

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Mallonee received an EMS unit commendation for a cardiac arrest save, a fire unit 

commendation for his performance in a highly commendable manner during a structure fire where he 

pulled a back up line, and the Meritorious Service Award for membership, involvement and being one of 

the founding members for the Safety Committee, and  

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Mallonee has served proudly with the Beavercreek Township Fire Department for 

thirty-six years and six months. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Beavercreek Township, Greene County, 

Ohio, offer Lieutenant David M. Mallonee their gratitude for your service and dedication to the citizens 

of Beavercreek Township and the city of Beavercreek and congratulate you on your retirement from the 

Beavercreek Township Fire Department, and 

FURTHER BE IT NOW RESOLVED, that the fire department retire unit number thirty. 

50 of 50

50 of 50


	5-23-16 regular trustee's meeting
	Regular Trustees’ Meeting
	Monday, May 23, 2016, at 7:00 p.m.

	BZA Application Thomas
	BZA Resolution Thomas
	Zoning Application Briden
	Zoning Resolution Briden
	05-23-16 GCSO Incident Analysis - Beavercreek Twp
	Sheet1

	Comp HR
	Comp Motion
	5-23-16 HR
	zoning bi-weekly report 05-23-16
	IT trusteemeeting-05232016
	Road Trustee Packet May 23

	Button1: 


